
By receiving this Agenda Pack electronically, you have 
saved the Authority approx. £4.53 in printing costs

AGENDA

Committee CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Date and Time 
of Meeting

TUESDAY, 15 MARCH 2016, 4.30 PM

Venue COMMITTEE ROOM 4 - COUNTY HALL

Membership Councillor Richard Cook (Chairperson)
Councillors Boyle, Chaundy, Gordon, Joyce, Morgan, Murphy, 
Dianne Rees and Lynda Thorne 

Mrs P Arlotte (Roman Catholic representative), Carol Cobert (Church in 
Wales representative), Ms Catrin Lewis (Parent Governor 
Representative) and Mrs Hayley Smith (Parent Governor 
Representative)

Time 
approx.

1  Apologies for Absence  4.30 pm

2  Declarations of Interest  

To be made at the start of the agenda item in question in accordance 
with the Members’ Code of Conduct.

3  Minutes  (Pages 1 - 8)

To approve the Minutes of the Meeting held on 12 January 2016.

4  Social Services and Well Being Act 2014 - Briefing Paper  (Pages 9 
- 18)

This Report enables the Committee to be updated on the progress 
being made on the Information, Advice and Assistance Service.

(a) Tony Young (Director Social Services) and Nicola Poole 
(Regional Lead – Sustainable Social Services) will introduce the 
briefing and be available to answer questions;

(b) Questions from Committee Members;
(c) The way forward for this item will be considered at the end of 

the meeting.

4.35 pm

5  Children's Services Quarter 3 Performance Report  (Pages 19 - 58) 5.15 pm



This Report enables the Committee to review and assess the 
performance of Children’s Services across a number of key 
performance indicators.

(a) Tony Young (Director Social Services) will introduce the briefing 
and be available to answer questions;

(b) Questions from Committee Members;
(c) The way forward for this item will be considered at the end of 

the meeting.

6  Education Quarter 3 Performance & Cardiff 2020 - "Aiming for 
Excellence"  (Pages 59 - 76)

This Report provides the Committee with an update on the corporate 
performance indicators for the Education Department, together with a 
verbal update on the Cardiff 2020 – Aiming for Excellence plan.

(a) Councillor Sarah Merry (Cabinet Member for Education) will be 
in attendance and may wish to make a statement;

(b) Nick Batchelar (Director of Education and Lifelong learning) will 
present the report and be available to answer any questions 
Members may have;

(c) Questions from Committee Members;
(d) The way forward for this item will be considered at the end of 

the meeting.

6.00 pm

7  Budget Panel  (Pages 77 - 84)

To provide the Committee with the report from the recent Budget Panel 
Meeting.

(a) Martyn Hutchings (Principal Scrutiny Officer) will briefly 
introduce the Panel’s report;

(b) Questions from Committee Members;
(c) The way forward for this item will be considered at the end of 

the meeting.

6.30 pm

8  Correspondence Report  (Pages 85 - 180)

To provide the Committee with copies of the correspondence sent and 
received since July 2015.

(a) Martyn Hutchings (Principal Scrutiny Officer) will briefly 
introduce the report;

(b) Questions from Committee Members.

6.45 pm

9  Way Forward  7.00 pm

10  Date of next meeting  

The date of the next meeting of the Children’s and Young People 
Scrutiny Committee is Tuesday 19th April 2016 at 2.30 pm



David Marr
Interim Monitoring Officer
Date:  Wednesday, 9 March 2016
Contact:  Mandy Farnham, 
029 2087 2618, Mandy.Farnham@cardiff.gov.uk

This document is available in Welsh / Mae’r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg



This page is intentionally left blank



CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

12 JANUARY 2016

Present: Councillor Richard Cook (Chairperson), Councillors Chaundy, 
Gordon, Joyce, Murphy, Dianne Rees and Lynda Thorne

Co-opted Members: Mrs P Arlotte (Roman Catholic representative), 
Carol Cobert (Church in Wales representative), Ms Catrin Lewis 
(Parent Governor Representative) and Mrs Hayley Smith (Parent 
Governor Representative)

58 :   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies were received from Councillors Joe Boyle and Derrick Morgan.

59 :   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

The Chairperson reminded Members of their responsibility under Part 3 of the 
Members’ Code of Conduct.  There were no declarations of interest.

60 :   MINUTES 

The minutes of the Committee Meeting on 8 December 2015 were approved as a 
correct record and signed by the Chairperson.

61 :   CARDIFF SCHOOLS ANNUAL REPORT 

The Chairperson welcomed Councillor Sarah Merry, Cabinet Member for Education, 
Nick Batchelar, Director of Education and Lifelong Learning, Angela Kent, Head of 
Achievement and Inclusion, together with Hannah Woodhouse (Managing Director, 
Central South Consortium), John Hayes (Headteacher, Ysgol Gyfun Cymraeg 
Plasmawr), Helen Turner (Headteacher Pencaerau Primary School) and Kevin 
Tansley (Headteacher Ty Gwyn Special School.

The Chairperson invited Councillor Merry to make a statement.  Councillor Merry 
informed the Committee that results had improved on the previous year and that in 
Key Stage 2 the rate of improvement had been faster than in any other authority in 
Wales.  Councillor Merry advised that the draft Cardiff 2020 plan would be available 
in the spring.

The Director presented the report, advising that there had been continuing 
improvement in performance and in some areas the improvement had a continued at 
a faster rate than across Wales as a whole. However, as some outcomes were still 
not yet high enough it important that the picture continues to improve.

Angela Kent provided the Committee with information in relation to the 7 key 
messages contained in the report:

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



 Performance continues to improve but there remains too much variation 
between schools, particularly in the secondary sector;

 The performance of primary schools overall is relatively stronger than 
secondary schools overall;

  Improvements in challenge and support are making a difference overall but 
there are still a minority of schools causing concern;

 Leadership and Governance are key;

 Performance of Minority Ethnic Pupils is improving in secondary schools at a 
faster rate than White UK pupils;

 Whilst performance overall is improving the outcomes of some vulnerable 
groups needs strengthening;

 Girls’ outcomes are higher than boys in most indicators but the performance of 
girls does not compare as well with national figures.

Kevin Tansley advised the Committee that the pupils at Ty Gwyn have to be treated 
as individuals because of their specific learning needs. Helen Turner was of the view 
that there had been great improvements; networking groups sharing best practice, 
pairing schools to share best practice and the development programmes that had 
been arranged by the Consortium.  John Hayes was of the same view, but believed 
that the picture has changed over the last 5 years due to a number of factors 
including accountability, the interpretation of data and level 2 threshold 
improvements.  Secondary schools are working hard to improve performance 
however, there is still more to be done. 

The Chair invited questions and comments from Members:

 Members queried the need to categorise pupils by ethnicity as some pupils 
were now 2nd and 3rd generation and whether that information can be linked to 
schools underperforming, schools being in a deprived area or in schools 
where there are difficulties in the quality of leadership.  

 Members questioned why the report did not contain information on the 
National Literacy and Numeracy tests which had been provided previously and 
whether the information should have been appended to this report. 

 Members queried the underachievement of White UK pupils living in more 
deprived areas as opposed to the achievement figures for Minority Ethnic 
pupils and whether specific strategies were in place to address the issue and 
further, were there strategies to deal with specific underachievement in 
performance of White UK male pupils.  Officers advised that from the data 
collated the numbers of underachieving White UK pupils are growing.  Schools 
are now managing their own Ethnic Minority Achievement Service (EMAS) 
staff which allows them to target specific difficulties and specific pupils which is 
making a difference.

Page 2



 Members were aware of the immersion initiative for pupils who wished to learn 
Welsh and queried whether a similar initiative could be developed for pupils 
who have English as an Additional Language.  Officers advised that 
consideration is being given to a cluster of schools being able to undertake 
some sort of similar initiative.

 Members queried how long there has been an underperformance in 
attainment of girls in English and expressed concern at that information 
bearing in mind the general gender gap performance data.

 Members raised concerns as to whether or not the target for engaging more 
Governors will be reached.  Officers advised that there has been a recruitment 
campaign and some strong Governors have been appointed but they are 
continually striving to attract new Governors. 

 Members briefly discussed the use of extra resources for programmes such as 
Read Write Inc.  Although it was noted that information as to School budgets 
has not yet been released.

 With reference to the Performance of SEN pupils Members queried to what 
extent that the performance results were cohort specific.  Officers advised that 
they were cohort specific within the school, however, not across the Local 
Authority Area. Members also queried whether, in relation to the percentages 
provided, a break down can be provided in respect of the various needs of the 
pupils.  Officers confirmed that that information could be provided. 

The Chairperson thanked the Cabinet Member and officers for attending the meeting, 
their presentations and for answering Members’ questions.

AGREED: That the Chairperson, on behalf of the Committee, writes to the Cabinet 
Member providing the Committee’s comments and observations.

62 :   CONSORTIUM DRAFT SELF-ASSESSMENT AND DRAFT BUSINESS 
PLAN 2016/17 

The Chairperson welcomed Hannah Woodhouse, Interim Manager, South Central 
Wales Education Consortium (the Consortium) and Councillor Chris Elmore, 
Chairman of the Consortium Joint Committee, Nick Batchelar, Director Education & 
Lifelong Learning and Angela Kent, Head of Achievement and Inclusion to the 
meeting.

Hannah Woodhouse presented the two reports, namely:

 Draft Self Evaluation Report which included an explanation of the positive 
features and also areas for improvement across the three key areas, namely 
Outcomes, School Improvement Service and Leadership; and

 Draft Business Plan for 2016/2017 which includes the Consortium’s vision by 
2018 and the priorities for improvement in 2016/2017.  

Page 3



The Chairperson thanked Hannah Woodhouse and Councillor Elmore for their 
presentation and invited questions and comments from the Committee:

 HW advised Members that the Consortium is to be the subject of an Estyn 
Inspection. 

 Members noted that whilst the Business Plan was very laudable, concern was 
raised that it was inconsistent in depth.  Members provided an example; page 
108 under the heading to reduce the variations in performance between 
schools ‘Secure improvement at pace in red and amber support schools 
reflecting what works through effective intervention’.  Other actions have a 
more detailed narrative.  

 
 Members raised concern that the number of NEETs in Cardiff was not 

reducing and queried the role of the Challenge Advisors, particular as this had 
been addressed at previous meetings.  Members were advised that the 
Challenge Advisors are now provided with more regular detailed information, 
and a vulnerability assessment profile used to identify those more likely to 
become NEET. 

 Members queried whether the Business Plan does address the concerns that 
have been raised and were advised that self-evaluations are carried out, 
particularly on the basis that there is information from 5 Local Authorities. The 
Director advised Members that in due course, Cardiff 2020, an ambitious 
strategy which goes beyond the Consortium and matches the demands of the 
local economy and demographic changes, will be implemented.    

 
 Members questioned the access to and use of pupil data by the Consortium 

and were advised that there were difficulties in both, partly due to there being 
no consistent approach to storing the information across the different 
Authorities.  

 Members were advised that a recruitment drive is currently ongoing to 
specifically for both Headteachers and Maths teachers.

The Chairperson thanked Hannah Woodhouse, Councillor Elmore and Officers for 
attending the meeting, their presentations and for answering Members’ questions.
AGREED:  That the Chairperson writes to the Central South Consortium providing 
the Committees comments and observations.

63 :   PREVENT STRATEGY 

The Chairperson welcomed Carl Davies, Home Office Prevent Coordinator, and 
Barrie Phillips, Wales HE/FE Prevent Co-Ordinator.

The purpose was to provide the Committee with a verbal briefing on the Prevent 
Strategy’s key objectives and projects covered.  

The Chairperson invited questions and comments from Members.

Page 4



 Members queried what practical tips were available to try and assess who may 
be vulnerable and were advised that the WRAP training and the ‘Train the 
Trainer’ workshops referred to in the presentation provides information as to 
general vulnerability.  The Local Government Association has also published a 
leaflet ‘Leading the preventing violent extremism agenda – a role made for 
Councillors’.

 Members were advised that an increase in religious practices, for example 
those attending prayers, and learning the Quran or an increase in those were 
traditional dress is not in itself a concern.  Faith and religious differences have 
to be respected and it is important to ensure that certain parts of society are 
not marginalised and that there is respect and tolerance of all.    

 Members queried their role and requested that training be developed 
specifically for Councillors to enable them to be prepared to address any 
issues which their constituents raise. 

 
 Members were advised that there were still a number of unregistered schools, 

for example independent schools are not specified authorities in accordance 
with the Counter Terrorism and Security Act 2015. Members felt that the 
strategy should include those schools.  

 
 Members were advised that the Prevent Strategy Toolkit would be available 

within a few weeks, a copy of that could be provided together with the latest 
guidance.  

The Chairperson thanked Mr Davies and Mr Phillips for their attendance at the 
meeting and answering Members questions.

AGREED:  That the Chairperson, on behalf of the Committee, writes to the Mr Davies 
with the Committee’s comments and observations.

64 :   SOCIAL SERVICES AND WELL BEING ACT (WALES) 2014 BRIEFING 
PAPER 

The Chairperson welcomed Tony Young, Director Social Services and Nicola Poole, 
Regional Lead, Sustainable Social Services to the Meeting to present the report and 
to provide the Committee with an update on the progress being made to ensure the 
Council is prepared to implement the Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act 
2014.

The Chairperson invited questions and comments from Members.

 Members expressed concern that in the Governance section of the briefing there 
was no reference to any involvement by the Scrutiny Committee and Members felt 
that the structure should be amended to show that. 

 The Director advised that additional funding will be sought to in order to contribute 
to the costs in the implementation of the Act.

Page 5



The Chairperson thanked the Officers for attending the meeting, their presentations 
and for answering Members’ questions.

AGREED: That the Chairperson, on behalf of the Committee, writes to the Cabinet 
Member providing the Committee’s comments and observations.

65 :   PLAY SERVICE BRIEFING PAPER 

The Chairperson welcomed Councillor Peter Bradbury, (Cabinet Member, 
Community Development, Co-operatives and Social Enterprise), and Andrew 
Gregory (Director, City Operations), Malcom Stammers (Operational Manager, 
Leisure and Play) and Jane Clemence (Active Communities Officer).

The purpose of the report was to allow Members to undertake the scrutiny of the New 
Delivery Model for Children’s Play which is to be considered by Cabinet in due 
course.

The Chairperson invited Councillor Bradbury to make a statement.  Councillor 
Bradbury informed the Committee that it is clear that there needs to be a sustainable 
option and that the pledge made at the time of the Budget Council meeting last year 
still stands.  Councillor Bradbury advised the Committee that Play Services will be 
provided until the new model play service is in place.

The Director and officers gave the presentation, following which the Chairperson 
invited questions and comments from the Committee.

 Members were advised that Play Centres would not be closed whilst are being 
finalised in relation to potential asset transfers and it is intended that the transfers 
take place by 31.03.16.

 Concern was raised in relation to the suggested possible venues in the Cardiff 
West area, however, Members were advised that the list of venues had not yet 
been finalised and was therefore subject to change. 

 
 Members were advised that there are successful play schemes in other areas 

based on this model.  Further, that no decision had been made by Cabinet at this 
time.

The Chairperson welcomed Wendy Ford (Grangetown Play Centre) and Linda 
Sullivan (Ely Play Centre) to make a statement on their experiences on the changes 
being made to the play service:

Wendy Ford and Linda Sullivan advised the Members of the following:

 WF was not a play worker, she was a volunteer although she worked in 
Education;

 WF believed that the use of a peripatetic team will not work as she believed that it 
would be too structured;

 Some of the premises were not suitable; 

Page 6



 WF had spoken to volunteers and other people involved at other centres who had 
expressed concern that they felt that they were being forced in to preparing 
business plans and that those plans had to be in place by 31 March 2016, and 
that they had had very little, if any, support;

 LF expressed concern that the volunteers were aware of the problems being 
faced by children in their own areas and had worked hard at creating a trusting 
environment for them at the local centre and this would be unsustainable with the 
new system;

 They did not want to be in a position of running such a Play Scheme, they felt that 
it should be done by qualified staff;

 Whilst some centres feel that they have not had enough support in preparing the 
business plan LF had received a great deal of support from ACE.  

The Chairperson thanked the Cabinet Member, Officers, Wendy Ford and Linda 
Sullivan for attending the meeting.

AGREED: That the Chairperson, on behalf of the Committee, writes to the Cabinet 
Member providing the Committee’s comments and observations.

66 :   DATE OF NEXT MEETING 

The date of the next meeting of the Children & Young People Scrutiny Committee is 
the Budget Meeting on Tuesday 16 February 2016 @ 10.00 am.

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



CITY AND COUNTY OF CARDIFF
DINAS A SIR CAERDYDD

CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
 15 March 2016

UPDATE ON THE IMPLEMENTATION OF THE SOCIAL SERVICES and WELL - 
BEING (WALES) ACT 2014 - THE INFORMATION, ADVICE AND ASSISTANCE 
SERVICE BRIEFING

Purpose of Report

1. This report provides Committee with a briefing on the progress being made to 

ensure the Council is prepared to implement the Social Services and Well- being 

(Wales) Act 2014 around the Information, Advice and Assistance service.

Background

2. The Committee has previously received briefings in January and July 2015 and 

January 2016 providing an update on progress with the preparations for the Act. 

These briefings included:

 an implementation timeline and self- assessment of readiness; 

 information on the implications of the Act for Social Services and the wider 

Council; 

 details of the advice and support available to assist Councils in implementing 

the Act;

 details on the various statutory codes of guidance and regulations that Welsh 

Government were enacting to support the primary legislation; 

 the Cardiff and Vale Social Care and Workforce Development Plan, which will 

ensure the workforce receive the information they need to deliver the changes 

the Act requires;

 Information that a Regional Steering Group has been established to oversee 

and monitor the preparations for implementing the Act and reports to the 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



Integrated Health and Social Care Governance Board, so that all partners are 

kept up to date on progress;

 An updated Regional Implementation Plan, which reflects the nine work 

streams being delivered through the Sustainable Social Services Programme 

and includes a risk assessment of the tasks required to implement the Act; 

and

 The governance structure together with regional task and finish groups for 

each work stream and lead co-ordinating officers.

3. In addition four national work groups have been established to share best practice 

and produce consistent material on an all Wales basis.  Cardiff and the Vale region 

have appointed officers to contribute to each of these groups. They are helping with 

the development of national checklists and, where possible, avoidance of 

duplication.

4. At the meeting in January 2016 Committee asked for further update briefings on 

different areas of change.

Update and Issues

5. The Act establishes four key principles and these can be summarised as:

 We must support people who have care and support needs to achieve well-
being.

 People are to be put at the heart of the new system by giving them an 

equal say in the support they receive.

 Partnership and co-operation must drive service delivery.

 Services will promote the Prevention of escalating need and ensure that 

the right help is available at the right time

6. New services are being developed to work towards these principles.  Part 2 of the 

Act sets out a duty on local authorities, with support from their local health boards, to 

ensure the provision of an information, advice and assistance service for all people 

Page 10



in their area, not just people who have an immediate need for care and support. This 

service will be designed to ensure that people can get access to the right help at the 

right time to meet their individual situation.  

7. The Information, Advice and Assistance Service (the Service) is central to the 

success of the transition to the care and support system under the Act. Appendix 1 

contains a draft diagram that sets out what this service will include across the Cardiff 

and Vale region.  The development of this Service is still work in progress as the 

Council secures improved understanding of what is required and what currently 

exists.

8. The Service must promote early intervention and prevention to ensure that people of 

all ages can be better supported to achieve their personal outcomes, and explore 

options for meeting their care and support needs. This Service will provide a 

preventative service in its own right through the provision of high quality and timely 

information, advice and assistance. It will be easy to use, welcoming and informative 

aiming to reach people before crisis point and offering early intervention and 

prevention.

9. An important part of this Service will be the Council’s First Points of Contact for Adult 

and Children’s Social Care Services. There will be a single contact telephone 

number and email address for all enquiries relating to Adults and one for Children. 

10.A First Point of Contact for Adults has been in place since 1 October 2015 and has 

been taking calls and sign posting people to access the most appropriate service to 

enable them to remain independent in their own home for as long as possible, 

through the use of preventative intervention services. Staff will be receiving further 

training so that they are clear when people need to be referred for a specialist 

assessment if this is required and also how to carry out a proportionate assessment 

of need. 

11.There is still work to be done to fully meet the requirements of the Act. The Council 

has recently been working with the Social Services Improvement Agency to pilot a 

new training course that will equip contact officers to take time to hold a ‘Better 

Page 11



Conversation’ in line with the principles in the Act to find out what personal outcomes 

are important to them. 

12.A new single number First Point of Contact is being developed for Children’s 

Services, and until this comes into effect the Children’s Access Point (CAP), 

Families First and Families Information Service will form an important part of a First 

Point of Contact for Children’s Services. Staff at these contact points will also be 

receiving further training to ensure they are able to complete proportionate 

assessments as required.

13. It is vital that any information provided to people is accurate and up to date. A new 

national resource directory is being developed and it will help people to obtain the 

information they need at any time, either at home using the internet or by contacting 

a single telephone number or email address.  This resource directory will be 

available across Wales and its success will depend on local authorities, health 

boards, third sector and the independent sector uploading details of the resources 

they provide to assist people looking for care and support.  This national information 

portal for Wales has been named Dewis Cymru.  It already exists for residents in 

North Wales, helping people to think about their well-being needs and to find 

services/resources who can assist them. Dewis can be accessed via 

www.Dewis.Wales or www.Dewis.Cymru. 

14.Content on the site is organised under a range of themes, which were developed in 

consultation with citizens.  These are: 

• Being well 

• Being at home 

• Being social 

• Being safe 

• Managing your money 

• Children and families.

15.Figure 1 below provides an image of the front page of Dews Cymru.  Work on 

establishing the regional content for the Vale and Cardiff is progressing well. 

Page 12

http://www.dewis.cymru/


Figure 1 – Home Page of Dewis Cymru

16.The Care Council for Wales has developed an Information and Learning hub 

designed to be a one-stop-shop for a wide range of resources produced to support 

social care professionals as they implement the legislation in their day to day work. 

This Hub is updated constantly, with new information and learning materials being 

added, it can be accessed via http://www.ccwales.org.uk/getting-in-on-the-act-hub 

Scope of Scrutiny

17.The scope of this scrutiny is to consider the implementation of the Social Services 

and Well Being (Wales) Act 2014, and to pass on any observations, comments or 

recommendations to the Director of Social Services, and cover:

 the progress being made to undertake this area of the Implementation Plan;

 any identified risks and the appropriateness of any proposed 

countermeasure;

Page 13

http://www.ccwales.org.uk/getting-in-on-the-act-hub


 The effectiveness of the implementation plan in addressing the requirements 

of the Social Services and Well Being (Wales) Act 2014.

Way Forward

18. Tony Young (Director of Social Services) and Nichola Poole (Regional Lead – 

Sustainable Social Services) have been invited to Committee present the briefing 

and answer any questions Members may have. 

19. Members are invited to consider the information set out in this report and to identify 

any issues on which they would wish to receive further information.

Legal Implications

20.The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and 

recommend but not to make policy decisions. As the recommendations in this report 

are to consider and review matters there are no direct legal implications. However, 

legal implications may arise if and when the matters under review are implemented 

with or without any modifications. Any report with recommendations for decision that 

goes to Cabinet/Council will set out any legal implications arising from those 

recommendations. All decisions taken by or on behalf of the Council must (a) be 

within the legal powers of the Council; (b) comply with any procedural requirement 

imposed by law; (c) be within the powers of the body or person exercising powers 

on behalf of the Council; (d) be undertaken in accordance with the procedural 

requirements imposed by the Council e.g. Scrutiny Procedure Rules; (e) be fully 

and properly informed; (f) be properly motivated; (g) be taken having regard to the 

Council's fiduciary duty to its taxpayers; and (h) be reasonable and proper in all the 

circumstances.

Financial Implications

21.The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and 

recommend but not to make policy decisions. As the recommendations in this report 

Page 14



are to consider and review matters there are no direct financial implications at this 

stage in relation to any of the work programme. However, financial implications may 

arise if and when the matters under review are implemented with or without any 

modifications. These financial implications will need to be considered before any 

changes are implemented. Any report with recommendations for decision that goes 

to Cabinet/Council will set out any financial implications arising from those 

recommendations.

RECOMMENDATIONS

The Committee is recommended to:

1. Consider this briefing paper and provide comments or advice to the Cabinet 

Member and Director of Social Services.

DAVID MARR TONY YOUNG
Interim Monitoring Officer Director of Social Services
8 March 2016

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



IAA Services Cardiff & Vale Region
 
W

h
i
t
e

 
M

a
i
l

T
e

x
t

E
-
m

a
i
l

T
e

l
e

p
h

o
n

e
F

a
c

e
 
t
o

 
f
a

c
e

I
n

t
e

r
n

e
t

LOCAL AUTHORITY HEALTH THIRD SECTOR INDEPENDENT SECTOR

CARDIFF

 COUNCIL

VALE OF GLAMORGAN

 COUNCIL

FPoC

Adult Services 

FPoC

Childrens Services

FIS/Families First 

Helpline

Communities 

FPoC 

Officers 

Social Work 

Teams 

FPoC

Childrens Services

FIS/CYPS Receiption/

Families First 

Helpline

SPoA

Adult Services 

Leisure Centre

Third 

Sector 

Brokerage 

C & V 

Health 

Services 

C2C & C1V

Comms Hubs

Patient Information

UHB

Carer Support Officers

C3SC GVS Registered Social 

Landlords

Care Homes

Care Agencies

Telecare SW Team

Public Health Wales

Libraries

Leisure Centres

Housing

Other Statutory 

Agencies

Probation

Police

Education/Schools

Primary & Community 

Health

Recording of Information

National Information Portal/Websites 

Community Pharmacies

Learning 

Disabilities

Mental Health

Learning 

Disabilities 

Team

Mental 

Health 

Team

Appendix A

P
age 17



T
his page is intentionally left blank



CITY AND COUNTY OF CARDIFF
DINAS A SIR CAERDYDD

CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

15 MARCH 2016

CHILDREN’S SERVICES PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT INFORMATION

REASON FOR THE REPORT

1. The Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee is responsible for scrutinising 
the performance of Children’s (social) Services.  This report sets out performance 
data outlining progress against the objectives aligned to the social theme for the 
quarter ending 31 December 2015.

BACKGROUND

2. The ongoing development of the Cardiff Performance Management Framework has 
brought into line the monitoring and evaluation of progress against the key objectives 
as set out in the Corporate Plan and the performance indicators set to assist in the 
understanding of the overall performance position of the Council.  This range of 
performance data relating to Children’s Services is contained in Appendix B to this 
report.

3. The Cabinet have identified that the delivery of their key priorities and the Council’s 
performance against key indicators should be the focus of future quarterly reports.  
Quarterly reports are prepared on that basis, allowing for trend analysis to be 
undertaken on an appropriate basket of indicators and the effective delivery of the 
Administration’s key priorities as attached at Appendix A.

4. The performance report attached at Appendix B has been constructed to highlight 
the progress made in delivering the key objectives, associated performance 
indicators, and commentaries that help to identify progress, issues and actions 
planned where the trend in performance is falling.  To make the information in the 
performance report clearer, each indicator is accompanied by an arrow, and in some 
cases, a happy, indifferent or sad face.

5. For your information, these symbols represent the following:

 The face symbol shows whether performance is likely, unlikely to, or may meet 
the target set for the year.

 The arrow direction shows whether performance has declined, has been 
sustained or improved when compared with an appropriate previous period.

6. At the meeting officers will be present to explain the performance information to the 
Committee, to highlight performance issues, and to answer questions that Members 
might have.

1Page 19

Agenda Item 5



7. In total Children’s Services have 47 national performance indicators, of which the 
Welsh Government have identified 11 as wither National Strategic Indicators (NSIs) 
or Performance Accountability Measures (PAMs).  Where relevant, the narrative in 
the report that follows indicates the status of an NSI or PAM indicator.

PERFORMANCE DURING QUARTER 3: OCTOBER TO DECEMBER 2015

8. Performance is being reported against the following corporate outcomes:

People in Cardiff are safe and feel safe
People achieve their full potential
People in Cardiff are healthy
Cardiff is fair, just and inclusive

9. The Service has three main functions:

a. Promoting the welfare of children in need
b. Safeguarding children
c. Improving outcomes for looked after children

OVERVIEW OF QUARTER 3 PERFORMANCE

10. Quarter 2 was a particularly strong quarter for Children’s Services and while there 
has been progress in Quarter 3, there has also been slippage in some areas.

11. For example, recording of decisions on referrals decreased from 94% in Quarter 2 to 
88% in Quarter 3.  Timely completion of initial assessments decreased from 92% in 
Quarter 2 to 83% in Quarter 3.  Despite this decrease, the 80% target was met for 
only the second time since Quarter 3 2007-08.  Further detail is included in 
paragraph 25.  There was also a decrease in the percentage of children who were 
seen by a social worker during their initial assessment (PAM) – from 67% in Quarter 
2 to 58% in Quarter 3.

12. Timeliness of initial child protection conferences decreased from 99% to 93%, but is 
still on course to meet the 92% target.  Recording of initial care plans for looked after 
children decreased to 78% from 81% in Quarter 2, and timeliness of permanence 
plans for looked after children decreased from 97% to 74%.  The reasons for the 
decrease in relation to permanence plans are currently being investigated.

13. There was improvement in relation to timeliness of core assessments with 
performance reaching 79% for Quarter 3 (from 75% in Quarter 2).  Performance in 
both November and December was in excess of the 80% target.

14. Timeliness of initial core groups increased to 98% in Quarter 3 from 97% in Quarter 2 
and timeliness of child protection reviews was 100%.

15. Work to progress the Directorate’s business plan has continued and key areas of 
progress include:

2Page 20



a. Implementation of Multi Agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH) - there has been 
significant progress during Quarter 3 including:
o Project Board / Team established and Project Brief signed off.
o Governance arrangements agreed; project plan being implemented.
o MASH accommodation agreed as Cardiff Bay Police Station.
o Information Sharing Protocol development underway.
o Operating model agreed.
o Staff composition agreed for MASH (met with Trade Unions).
o Vetting process for staff commenced.
o ICT infrastructure agreed.
o Information sharing platform / IT solution developments are in process.

b. Early Help Strategy - launched during Quarter 3 and is being implemented.  The 
Prevention & Partnership Improvement Project Manager is in post and the 
following developments made:
o A pilot of the Joint Assessment Family Framework (JAFF) has commenced 

which will shape the future JAFF and Family Plan.
o The Rapid Response pilot was reviewed with a decision to continue the 

service and expand capacity.
o Work has commenced with Strategic Estates to identify accommodation for 

the Adolescent Resource Centre (ARC).
o Questionnaire has been developed for a market sounding exercise on the 

respite care element of the ARC.

c. Single gateway for young people aged 16 or above to access direct housing, 
advice and support - went live in Quarter 3, the impact of which will be 
monitored in Quarter 4.

d. Remodelling of Children’s Services - decision taken to work with families 
adopting a Restorative Approach which is consistent with our partners who work 
within early intervention and prevention services, but to compliment this 
approach with the Signs of Safety Framework.  Proposed structure developed 
and OM roles are with Hay for evaluation.  In relation to services for disabled 
children – the Change Manager is in post and the project documentation has 
been developed.

16. There has been some slippage in progress against some of the milestones in the 
Corporate Plan relating to the Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE) Strategy, work with 
Education to improve educational outcomes for looked after children and care 
leavers and the Workforce Strategy.  The CSE Strategy has been drafted in 
readiness for sign off by Cabinet in Quarter 4.  An interim CSE manager and 
permanent CSE co-ordinator have been appointed and are in post.  Once approved, 
the interim CSE manager will lead on the implementation of the CSE Strategy.  The 
training needs analysis for Children’s Services and partner agencies has been 
extended to include consideration of the volume of CSE cases, categories of risk and 
an analysis of perpetrators.  This is to ensure that the training provision reflects the 
complexity of the issues.  In relation to work with Education, following concerns 
raised in Quarter 2 regarding performance in relation to timeliness of Personal 
Education Plans for looked after children, information available in Quarter 3 shows no 
improvement to date.  New arrangements have been established to provide 
Operational and Team Managers with information that enables them to proactively 
monitor PEPs.  It is too early to say whether these new arrangements have resulted 

3Page 21



in improved performance.  Work on the Children’s Services Workforce Strategy is 
ongoing and is on target to be signed off and an implementation plan agreed in 
Quarter 4.

17. There has also been some slippage in progress against some of the milestones in 
the Children’s Services Plan relating to:

a. Improving the quality of referrals - the review of the Multi-Agency Referral Form 
planned for Quarter 2 has been integrated with work being undertaken in 
relation to the Social Services & Wellbeing (Wales) Act.  Consideration is being 
given to adopting the Cwm Taf form which takes account of the National 
Minimum Core Data Set.

b. Safeguarding monitoring requirements - work on the development of a suite of 
performance measures and mechanisms for reporting continues and is due for 
completion early in Quarter 1 2016-17.

c. YOS collaborative working - the absence of any certainty about the future of 
Local Authority boundaries until the recent publication of the Local Government 
(Wales) Bill has been an obstacle to progress.  Added to which, the Youth 
Offending Service (YOS) was subject to a comprehensive external inspection 
during Quarter 3.  The Chief Executive and Police & Crime Commissioner 
commissioned a review of YOS governance which has now made 
recommendations for improvement.  A refresh of the governance arrangements 
is now underway with the Chief Executive as Chair of the Management Board.  
Progress in relation to the merger will be considered in that context.

d. Corporate Parenting Strategy - will be considered by Cabinet in Quarter 4 and 
the launch will follow shortly after.

e. Re-commissioning of the Supervised Contact Service - evaluation completed 
and tender exercise undertaken – decision to award contract expected early in 
Quarter 4.  Currently on target for revised launch date in Quarter 1 2016-17.

f. Enhanced Fostering Scheme - following concerns raised in Quarter 2 regarding 
the capacity of the provider to deliver on its commitments, the decision was 
taken in Quarter 3 to end the contract due to a lack of suitable placements.  The 
following actions are being taken as a result:
o Identification of alternative placements for young people to facilitate return to 

Cardiff.
o Review of future arrangements to meet the needs of this cohort.
o Review the financial impact arising from withdrawal of the scheme.

g. Welsh bilingual service - operational pressures have made the completion of the 
Linguistic Assessments more difficult.  Managers will focus on completing them 
in Quarter 4.

h. Savings - the month 9 position for Childrens Services shows an overspend of 
£1.59m (3.4%) against a budget of £46.6m.  As in previous years, there is 
ongoing pressure on external commissioning budgets, notably in relation to 
fostering placements.  The position also reflects current projections in relation to 
the savings targets set for the service in 2015/16.  The latest position shows an 

4Page 22



anticipated shortfall of £1.1m in relation to the savings target, although work is 
ongoing to reduce the number of high cost out of area placements.

i. Quality Assurance Framework - milestones associated with the development of 
the Quality Assurance Framework have been revised due to capacity issues.  A 
Quality Assurance Officer post has been established and the recruitment 
process is underway.  Implementation of the Framework is planned for Quarter 1 
2016-17.

18. As a result of the success of the Children's Services Improvement Board in 
supporting accelerated improvement in response to the Director's 2013 diagnostic, it 
has been agreed that this can be stood down as previously constituted.  This reflects 
the fact that ongoing improvement work is now better integrated into the corporate 
Organisational Develop Programme in order to draw on corporate and cross 
Directorate resources more effectively and will simply continue on a mainstreamed 
business as usual part of the Social Services Directorate.

19. The Children's Social Services Improvement Board has been replaced by an 
Improvement Board for Services to Children.  This reflects the greater confidence 
across the board that the internal change and improvement secured to date enables 
us to raise our focus toward a much broader and more strategic agenda with key 
partners.  The new Board met for the first time on 8th January and is chaired by the 
Council's Chief Executive.  The Board will also oversee the recently launched Early 
Help Strategy to ensure effective partner buy in at the earliest stages of the lives of 
all children.

DETAILED COMMENTARY

A) PROMOTING THE WELFARE OF CHILDREN IN NEED

20. Children’s Services received 954 referrals in Quarter 3 (Referrals 1) compared with 
936 in Quarter 2.  A detailed breakdown of contacts and referrals is provided at 
Appendix C for the Committee’s information.  This report shows the source of the 
7,976 contacts received by Children’s Services during Quarter 3, along with the 
outcome and a summary of the trend over the last 2 years.  Similar information is 
provided for the 954 referrals received during Quarter 3.  The number of referrals to 
the service continues to be closely monitored (see graph below).  The proportion of 
referrals received that were re-referrals within a year (SCC/010) reduced to 24.3% 
from 25.2% in Quarter 2.

5Page 23



21. In relation to the recording of decisions on referrals (SCC/006), performance declined 
in Quarter 3 to 88.2% (841 / 954) from 94.1% (881 / 936) in Quarter 2.  This is in the 
context of a 10% increase in the number of contacts (7,280 to 7,976) and capacity 
issues at Intake & Assessment.  This decrease was anticipated following an increase 
in turnover of both permanent and agency staff during the quarter.  Agency staff have 
been recruited early in Quarter 4 and this will help get performance back on track by 
year end.  The recruitment of staff to permanent Intake & Assessment posts is now 
being prioritised.  The performance report is based on electronic records, but there is 
evidence that the electronic capture of the information is delayed.  However, 
management oversight confirms all referrals are subject to manager decision and 
prioritisation on the day of receipt.

22. There has been significant progress during Quarter 3 towards the implementation of 
a Multi-Agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH).  Please see page 3 for further 
information.  Next steps are:

 Accommodation planning to be developed further with South Wales Police.
 Agree work schedule for ICT infrastructure implementation.
 Look at MHub and Guardian re: export / import functionality and performance in 

line with Information, Advice and Assistance core data set.
 Children’s Access Point (CAP) staff to complete vetting forms.
 Phased approach for Emergency Duty Team (EDT) and Protection of 

Vulnerable Adults (POVA) to follow process for CAP staff.

23. Source of referrals – a table summarising the source of referrals to Children’s 
Services during Quarter 3 is included below:

6Page 24



Source of Referrals Q3
Ambulance Service 0
Central Government Agency 6
Family, Friend or Neighbour 31
Housing 0
Independent Provider Agency 0
LA Housing Dept. or Housing Association 8
Local Authority's own Social Services Department 125
Other Agency 122
Other Departments of Own or Other LA 35
Other Individual 2
Other Social Services Department 0
Other Type 0
Police 227
Primary Health / Community Health 160
Probation Service 40
School 186
Secondary Health 8
Self Referral 1
UK Border Agency 3
Total 954

24. Outcome of referrals – 93.6% (893 / 954) of referrals were allocated to a social 
worker for initial assessment in Quarter 3 compared with 92.0% (881 / 936) in Quarter 
2 (SCC/007a).  3.4% (32 / 954) of referrals were allocated to other grades of worker 
for initial assessment compared with 0.2% (2 / 936) in Quarter 2.  4.1% (39 / 954) of 
referrals did not proceed to assessment during the quarter.  In these cases, referrers 
were signposted to other agencies, given advice or information, or the referrals were 
closed with no further action.  As noted in previous reports, while we have improved 
the management of the front door and determining what contacts should become 
referrals, we are also seeing an increase in the complexity of the cases that stay 
open to Children’s Services.

25. Performance in relation to the timeliness of initial assessments declined in Quarter 3 
to 83.2% (691 / 831) from 91.7% (771 / 841) in Quarter 2 (SCC/042a).  Following 
significant improvements in recent quarters, performance has declined steadily in 
Quarter 3 as a result of capacity issues at Intake & Assessment.  However, the 80% 
target was met for only the second time since Quarter 3 2007-08.  Agency staff have 
been recruited early in Quarter 4 and this will help get performance back on track by 
year end.  The recruitment of staff to permanent Intake & Assessment posts is now 
being prioritised.

26. 58.0% (482 / 831) of children were seen by a social worker during their initial 
assessment compared with 66.6% (560 / 841) in Quarter 2 (SCC/011a – PAM).  
Inclusion of children seen by a Children's Services worker other than a social worker 
increases the percentage of children seen to 60.5% (503 / 831).  30.7% (255 / 831) 
children were seen alone by a social worker during their initial assessment 
(SCC/011b – NSI), compared with 29.5% (248 / 841) in Quarter 2.  There has been a 
significant drive in empowering social workers and managers to undertake the most 
appropriate assessment at the point of referral.  This has led to a range of outcomes 
including initial assessments:

7Page 25



 Proceeding straight to child protection investigations / core assessment / 
specialist assessments.

 Being closed with no further action after receiving managers have re-
evaluated the decision to proceed to initial assessment.

In these circumstances a full initial assessment would not have been completed - a 
more appropriate assessment would have been undertaken and the child seen as 
part of that assessment.  This is commensurate with the new Social Services & 
Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014 wherein a proportionate assessment will be undertaken 
following all referrals.  The 80% target set by the ADSS, WLGA and CSSIW pre-
dates this new approach which is consistent with the direction of travel across the 
country.

27. The percentage of initial assessments where information regarding ethnicity, religion 
and first language were recorded during Quarter 3 is as follows:

a. Ethnicity – 65.9% (548 / 831)
b. Religion – 33.7% (280 / 831)
c. First language – 55.5% (461 / 831) 

A detailed breakdown of the ethnicities, religions and first languages of children and 
young people who were subject to an initial assessment during Quarter 3 is available 
on request.

28. Performance in relation to timely completion of core assessments was 78.6% (319 / 
406) in Quarter 3 compared with 75.1% (417 / 555) in Quarter 2 (SCC/043a).  
Performance against this indicator continued to improve in Quarter 3 with both 
November and December exceeding the 80% target.  A graph displaying timely 
completion of (initial and) core assessments is included below:

8Page 26



B) SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN

29. The number of children on the child protection register at the end of Quarter 3 was 
311 (from 322 at the end of Quarter 2) (CS CPR 4).

30. 93.0% (106 / 114) of initial child protection conferences took place within the 15 
working day timescale in Quarter 3 – from 98.5% (129 / 131) in Quarter 2 (SCC/014).  
Performance has decreased slightly in Quarter 3 but remains above target level.  The 
late conferences relate to 8 children from 3 sibling groups – all conferences have 
since been held.

31. Timeliness of review child protection conferences was 100% (282 / 282) in Quarter 3 
compared with 99.6% (230 / 231) in Quarter 2.  Performance against initial and 
review child protection conferences is displayed in the graph below:

32. Initial core groups took place within the 10 working day timescale in 98.4% (127 / 
129) of cases in Quarter 3 compared with 97.4% (114 / 117) in Quarter 2 (SCC/015).  
Performance continued to improve in Quarter 3 and is currently on track to meet the 
93% target.

33. 100% (311 / 311) of children on the child protection register had an allocated social 
worker at 31st December 2015.

34. The Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE) Strategy has been drafted in readiness for sign 
off by Cabinet in Quarter 4.  An interim CSE manager and permanent CSE co-
ordinator have been appointed and are in post.  Once approved, the interim CSE 
manager will lead on the implementation of the CSE Strategy.  The training needs 
analysis for Children’s Services and partner agencies has been extended to include 
consideration of the volume of CSE cases, categories of risk and an analysis of 

9Page 27



perpetrators.  This is to ensure that the training provision reflects the complexity of 
the issues.

C) IMPROVING OUTCOMES FOR LOOKED AFTER CHILDREN

35. The number of children who were looked after at 31st December 2015 (not including 
those children being looked after as part of a respite care arrangement) was 625 
compared with 630 at 30th September 2015 (CS LAC 3e).  This represents a rate of 
8.6 children per 1,000 in Cardiff, which is lower than the all Wales rate of 9.1 per 
1,000 as at 31st March 2014.  The recent fluctuation in the number of looked after 
children is displayed in the graph below.

36. Initial care plans were in place prior to children becoming looked after in 77.8% (49 / 
63) of cases during Quarter 3, compared with 81.3% (52 / 64) in Quarter 2 
(SCC/001a).  Performance against this indicator has reduced slightly in Quarter 3 
and will be kept under close review by managers.

37. 74.1% (40 / 54) of permanence plans were in place by second looked after review in 
Quarter 3, compared with 96.6% (57 / 59) in Quarter 2 (SCC/001b).  The reasons for 
this decrease are currently being investigated.

38. 70.3% (359 / 511) of looked after children were placed with independent sector 
providers at the end of Quarter 3 (CS LAC 44), showing no change from 70.3% (359 / 
511) in Quarter 2.  The number of children placed in independent sector residential 
placements remained stable at 55.

39. 60.9% (296 / 486) of children in regulated placements were placed in Cardiff at the 
end of Quarter 3 compared with 61.6% (315 / 511) at the end of Quarter 2 (CS LAC 
58).  A further 82 children placed outside Cardiff were within 20 miles of their home 

10Page 28



address.  2 of the children not placed in Cardiff are placed with relative carers.  For 
some children placement outside the authority is in their best interests, examples 
include children placed with family members who live outside Cardiff, children placed 
in specialist placements and some children who are placed in areas that are closer to 
their home address than some parts of the city.

40. 95.9% (397 / 414) of statutory reviews for looked after children were held within 
prescribed timescales in Quarter 3 compared with 96.0% (458 / 477) in Quarter 2 
(SCC/021).  85.3% (353 / 414) of statutory visits were held in accordance with 
regulations in Quarter 3 showing no change from 85.3% (407 / 477) in Quarter 2 
(SCC/025 – PAM).

41. All looked after children were allocated to a social worker at 31st December 2015.

YOUTH OFFENDING SERVICE

42. The numbers of First Time Entrants (FTEs) to the Youth Offending Service (YOS) has 
decreased during Quarter 3 to 29 (from 34 in Quarter 2).  This is also a decrease on 
Quarter 3 2014-15 when there were 32 FTEs.

43. During Quarter 3 a temporary Anti-Social Behaviour (ASB) Case Manager was 
appointed and took up post.  The post holder will work with young people issued with 
warnings under ASB legislation as a result of their behaviour within the community, 
offering comprehensive assessments to young people and their families that inform 
individually tailored intervention packages.

44. Training for all relevant staff on Child Sexual Exploitation is to be undertaken by the 
LSCB.  To date half of YOS staff have completed the Social Services training course 
on Human Trafficking.

45. Cardiff Prison Forensic Psychology Department training sessions on working with 
girls have been completed.  The development of a distinct approach to working with 
girls will commence in Quarter 4.

46. The absence of any certainty about the future of Local Authority boundaries until the 
recent publication of the Local Government (Wales) Bill has been an obstacle to 
progress.  Added to which, the Youth Offending Service (YOS) was subject to a 
comprehensive external inspection during Quarter 3.  The Chief Executive and Police 
& Crime Commissioner commissioned a review of YOS governance which has now 
made recommendations for improvement.  A refresh of the governance arrangements 
is now underway with the Chief Executive as Chair of the Management Board.  
Progress in relation to the merger will be considered in that context.

STAFFING

47. The percentage of social worker vacancies in Quarter 3 was 21.6% compared with 
21.4% in Quarter 2 (Staff 1).  The vacancy position has remained stable since 
Quarter 2, although the position has gradually deteriorated during Quarter 3.  The 
recruitment campaign is ongoing and agreement has been reached that when all 
vacancies have been filled, Children’s Services will continue to recruit to a “pool” of 

11Page 29



additional social workers.  This will enable the service to maintain consistency of 
service provision and caseloads whilst managing healthy staff turnover without 
needing to rely on expensive agency social workers.  The ambitious 15% target has 
been revised to 18% for 31st March 2017.  Work on the Children’s Services 
Workforce Strategy is ongoing and is on target to be signed off and an 
implementation plan agreed in Quarter 4.

48. The average number of days of sickness absence for staff in Children’s Services in 
Quarters 1 to 3 was 11.1, compared with 9.7 in Quarters 1-3 2014-15.  In order to 
improve compliance with the sickness process in Children’s Services, the Assistant 
Director will send a briefing to all managers to reiterate the importance of timely 
application of the sickness process.  Progress will be monitored on a weekly basis at 
the Children’s Management Team and a Human Resources representative will be 
invited to attend on a monthly basis to assist in the monitoring of the process.

49. 86.0% compliance with finalisation of objective sheets and 81.6% completion of half 
yearly reviews for 2015-16 had been achieved at the time of writing.  A small 
percentage cannot be initiated / reviewed due to staff absence (e.g. maternity leave 
and long term sick leave), and a high level of recruitment activity and new intake 
accounts for a proportion of the outstanding PPDRs.  In order to improve compliance 
in Children’s Services, the Assistant Director will send a briefing to all managers to 
reiterate the importance of PPDRs to support and develop staff and the impact of this 
on staff retention.  Progress will be monitored on a weekly basis at the Children’s 
Management Team to ensure completion of 6 monthly reviews, and to provide a more 
timely response to end of year reviews and finalisation of objectives for 2016-17.

WAY FORWARD

50. Members are invited to consider the information set out in the report and to identify 
any issues which require more detailed scrutiny.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

51. The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and recommend, 
but not to make policy decisions.   As the recommendations in this report are to 
consider and review matters there are no direct legal implications.  However, legal 
implications may arise if and when the matters under review are implemented with or 
without any modifications.  Any report with recommendations for decision that goes to 
Cabinet / Council will set out any legal implications arising from those 
recommendations.  All decisions taken by or on behalf of the Council must (a) be 
within the legal powers of the Council; (b) comply with any procedural requirement 
imposed by law; (c) be within the powers of the body or person exercising powers on 
behalf of the Council; (d) be undertaken in accordance with the procedural 
requirements imposed by the Council e.g. Scrutiny Procedure Rules; (e) be fully and 
properly informed; (f) be properly motivated; (g) be taken having regard to the 
Council's fiduciary duty to its taxpayers; and (h) be reasonable and proper in all the 
circumstances.

12Page 30



FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

52. The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and recommend, 
but not to make policy decisions.  As the recommendations in this report are to 
consider and review matters there are no direct financial implications at this stage in 
relation to any of the work programme.  However, financial implications may arise if 
and when the matters under review are implemented with or without any 
modifications.  Any report with recommendations for decision that goes to Cabinet / 
Council will set out any financial implications arising from those recommendations.

RECOMMENDATION

The Committee is recommended to:
Consider the contents of the report and report any comments to the Cabinet Member.

Tony Young
Director of Social Services
16 February 2016

13Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Quarter 3

Targets set by CSSIW are highlighted Page 1 of 7 09/03/2016

Indicator
Ref

Indicator Title Reporte
d to:

2007-
08

2008-
09

2009-
10

2010-
11

2011-
12

2012-
13

2013-
14

2014-
15

Q1
2015-
16

Q2
2015-
16

Q3
2015-
16

Curren
t
Progre
ss
Agains
t
Target

Status 2015-
16

Target

Level
Triggeri
ng Mgt
Action

Comments

Reporte
d to:

Children are protected from significant harm and are empowered to protect themselves

Referrals
1
Local PI

Number of
Referrals
Received

CS CMT

Scrutiny

2,576 3,241 3,793 4,525 4,730 4,744 4,531 4,195 844 936 954 Target
setting

not
appropr

iate

Target
setting

not
approp

riate

Target
setting

not
approp

riate

Q3 2013-14 = 1,142
Q3 2014-15 = 1,050
October = 257
November = 408
December = 289
In addition to referrals the service received 7,976
contacts in Quarter 3 of which 954 proceeded to
referral and are included in the number of referrals
above.

SCC/006
Core
Indicator

The percentage of
referrals during the
year on which a
decision was
made within 1
working day

CS CMT

Cabinet
Scrutiny

98.4% 98.6%
(Ave)

99.2%
(Ave)

90.4%
(Ave)

89.6%
(Ave)

90.7%
(Ave)

80.3% 83.1% 89.8% 94.1% 88.2%
L

100.0
%

841 / 954
Performance has decreased in Quarter 3 as in the
context of a 10% increase in the number of contacts
(7,280 to 7,976) and capacity issues at Intake &
Assessment.  This decrease was anticipated
following an increase in turnover of both permanent
and agency staff during the quarter.  Agency staff
have been recruited early in Quarter 4 and this will
help get performance back on track by year end.  The
recruitment of staff to permanent Intake &
Assessment posts is now being prioritised.  The
performance report is based on electronic records,
but there is evidence that the electronic capture of the
information is delayed.  However, management
oversight confirms all referrals are subject to
manager decision and prioritisation on the day of
receipt.
All Wales average 2014-15 = 97.0%

SCC/007
(a)
Core
Indicator

The percentage of
referrals that
proceed to
allocation for initial
assessment
during the year
allocated to a
social worker for
initial assessment

CS CMT

Scrutiny

42.2% 44.0%
(Ave)

44.4%
(Ave)

42.2%
(Ave)

57.1%
(Ave)

61.9%
(Ave)

92.0% 91.9% 94.1% 92.0% 93.6% Target
setting

not
appropr

iate

Target
setting

not
approp

riate

Target
setting

not
approp

riate

893 / 954
3.4% of referrals were allocated to someone other
than a Social Worker for initial assessment in Quarter
3 (32 / 954).
4.1% of referrals did not proceed to initial
assessment in Quarter 3 (39 / 954).
All Wales average 2014-15 = 73.2%

P
age 49



Quarter 3

Targets set by CSSIW are highlighted Page 2 of 7 09/03/2016

Indicator
Ref

Indicator Title Reporte
d to:

2007-
08

2008-
09

2009-
10

2010-
11

2011-
12

2012-
13

2013-
14

2014-
15

Q1
2015-
16

Q2
2015-
16

Q3
2015-
16

Curren
t
Progre
ss
Agains
t
Target

Status 2015-
16

Target

Level
Triggeri
ng Mgt
Action

Comments

Reporte
d to:

SCC/010
Core
Indicator

The percentage of
referrals that are
re-referrals within
12 months

CS CMT

Scrutiny

23.1% 22.2% 25.1% 29.1% 29.5% 32.3% 25.6% 25.4% 25.6% 25.2% 24.3%
J

24.0% 30.0% 909 / 3,741
There has been a continued decrease in the number
of re-referrals over the quarter and performance is on
target.  Regular monitoring will continue.  The review
of the Multi-Agency Referral Form planned for Quarter
2 has been integrated with work being undertaken in
relation to the Social Services & Wellbeing (Wales)
Act.  Consideration is being given to adopting the
Cwm Taf form which takes account of the National
Minimum Core Data Set.  It is envisaged that the
Multi Agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH), once
implemented, will lead to a reduction in inappropriate
referrals and re-referrals.  There has also been a
renewed focus on achieving better outcomes for
children at the point of case closure thereby reducing
re-referrals to the Directorate.
All Wales average 2014-15 = 21.1%

CS CPR 4

Local PI

CPR caseload CS CMT

Scrutiny

207 213 283 272 255 372 314 255 300 322 311 Target
setting

not
appropr

iate

Target
setting

not
approp

riate

Target
setting

not
approp

riate

Figure does not include 15 temporary registrations
where case management responsibility for the
children is retained by their home authority.

SCC/014
Core
Indicator

The percentage of
initial child
protection
conferences due
in the year which
were held within
15 working days
of the strategy
discussion

CS CMT

Scrutiny

48.9% 73.5%
(Ave)

72.7%
(Ave)

86.3%
(Ave)

82.6%
(Ave)

84.6% 83.8% 90.7% 96.4% 98.5% 93.0%
J

92.0% 75.0% 106 / 114
Performance has decreased slightly in Quarter 3, but
remains above target level.
All Wales average 2014-15 = 92.6%

SCC/015
Core
Indicator

The percentage of
initial core group
meetings due in
the year which
were held within
10 working days
of the initial child
protection
conference

CS CMT

Scrutiny

69.3% 78.6% 82.6%
(Ave)

87.6%
(Ave)

88.7% 90.4%
(Ave)

88.4% 92.4% 95.2% 97.4% 98.4%
J

93.0% 85.0% 127 / 129
Performance continued to improve in Quarter 3 and
is currently on track to meet the 93% target.
All Wales average 2014-15 = 91.1%

P
age 50



Quarter 3

Targets set by CSSIW are highlighted Page 3 of 7 09/03/2016

Indicator
Ref

Indicator Title Reporte
d to:

2007-
08

2008-
09

2009-
10

2010-
11

2011-
12

2012-
13

2013-
14

2014-
15

Q1
2015-
16

Q2
2015-
16

Q3
2015-
16

Curren
t
Progre
ss
Agains
t
Target

Status 2015-
16

Target

Level
Triggeri
ng Mgt
Action

Comments

Reporte
d to:

SCC/034
Core
Indicator

The percentage of
child protection
reviews carried
out within statutory
timescales during
the year

CS CMT

Cabinet
Scrutiny

98.9% 99.2%
(Ave)

99.5%
(Ave)

99.2%
(Ave)

98.5%
(Ave)

98.0%
(Ave)

98.5% 99.8% 100.0% 99.6% 100.0%
J

100.0
%

70.0% 282 / 282
100% performance achieved in the context of a 22%
incrased in the number of required conferences (282
from 231).
All Wales average 2014-15 = 98.0%

Children and young people are supported to live safely within their families with the lowest appropriate level of intervention

SCC/042
(a)
Core
Indicator

The percentage of
initial
assessments
carried out within
7 working days

CS CMT

Cabinet
Scrutiny

79.8% 69.8%
(Ave)

54.4%
(Ave)

37.9%
(Ave)

44.8%
(Ave)

67.4%
(Ave)

40.1% 50.6% 67.1% 91.7% 83.2%
J

80.0% 50.0% 691 / 831
October = 90.5%
November = 82.5%
December = 77.0%
Following significant improvements in recent
quarters, performance has declined steadily in
Quarter 3 as a result of capacity issues at Intake &
Assessment.  However, the 80% target was met for
only the second time since Quarter 3 2007-08.
Agency staff have been recruited early in Quarter 4
and this will help get performance back on track by
year end.  The recruitment of staff to permanent
Intake & Assessment posts is now being prioritised.
The average working days taken to complete initial
assessments that took longer than 7 working days =
10.5 (1,471 / 140).
All Wales average 2014-15 = 75.9%

P
age 51



Quarter 3

Targets set by CSSIW are highlighted Page 4 of 7 09/03/2016

Indicator
Ref

Indicator Title Reporte
d to:

2007-
08

2008-
09

2009-
10

2010-
11

2011-
12

2012-
13

2013-
14

2014-
15

Q1
2015-
16

Q2
2015-
16

Q3
2015-
16

Curren
t
Progre
ss
Agains
t
Target

Status 2015-
16

Target

Level
Triggeri
ng Mgt
Action

Comments

Reporte
d to:

SCC/011
(a)
Core
Indicator

The percentage of
initial
assessments that
took place during
the year where
there is evidence
that the child has
been seen by the
Social Worker

CS CMT

Scrutiny

26.8% 31.0%
(Ave)

40.7%
(Ave)

45.1%
(Ave)

44.9%
(Ave)

59.6%
(Ave)

67.1% 60.9% 64.4% 66.6% 58.0%
L

80.0% 60.0% 482 / 831
Performance against this PI has a relationship with
SCC/007a.
There has been a significant drive in empowering
social workers and managers to undertake the most
appropriate assessment at the point of referral.  This
has led to a range of outcomes including initial
assessments:
• Proceeding straight to child protection
investigations / core assessment / specialist
assessments.
• Being closed with no further action after receiving
managers have re-evaluated the decision to proceed
to initial assessment.
In these circumstances a full initial assessment would
not have been completed - a more appropriate
assessment would have been undertaken and the
child seen as part of that assessment.  This is
commensurate with the new Social Services &
Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014 wherein a proportionate
assessment will be undertaken following all referrals.
The target set by the ADSS, WLGA and CSSIW pre-
dates this new approach which his consistent with the
direction of travel across the country.
Inclusion of children seen by a Children's Services
worker other than a social worker increases the
percentage of children seen to 60.5% (503 / 831).
30.7% of children were seen alone by a social worker
(255 / 831).
All Wales average 2014-15 = 78.0%

SCC/043
(a) Core
Indicator

The percentage of
required core
assessments
carried out within
35 working days

CS CMT

Cabinet
Scrutiny

27.3% 41.2%
(Ave)

49.5%
(Ave)

36.3%
(Ave)

49.5% 68.2%
(Ave)

71.1% 61.0% 71.2% 75.1% 78.6%
K

80.0% 50.0% 319 / 406
October = 72.1%
November = 80.5%
December =  82.8%
Performance has continued to improve in Quarter 3,
with both November and December exceeding the
80% target.
The average working days taken to complete core
assessments that took longer than 35 working days
=93 (8,080 / 87).
All Wales average 2014-15 = 80.7%

Looked after children experience the best care and support to help them recognise their abilities, have aspirations and achieve their full potential

P
age 52



Quarter 3

Targets set by CSSIW are highlighted Page 5 of 7 09/03/2016

Indicator
Ref

Indicator Title Reporte
d to:

2007-
08

2008-
09

2009-
10

2010-
11

2011-
12

2012-
13

2013-
14

2014-
15

Q1
2015-
16

Q2
2015-
16

Q3
2015-
16

Curren
t
Progre
ss
Agains
t
Target

Status 2015-
16

Target

Level
Triggeri
ng Mgt
Action

Comments

Reporte
d to:

CS LAC
3e
Local PI

LAC caseload
(not including
respite care
arrangements for
disabled children)

CS CMT

Scrutiny

521 520 530 521 568 557 611 650 662 630 625 Target
setting

not
appropr

iate

Target
setting

not
approp

riate

Target
setting

not
approp

riate

Cardiff rate at 30.09.15 = 8.6 per 000
Wales rate at 31.03.14 = 9.1 per 000

CS LAC
58
Local PI

Percentage of
children in
regulated
placements who
are placed in
Cardiff

CS CMT

Scrutiny

New for
2008-
09

61.4% 64.8% 67.0% 65.6% 62.2% 62.0% 60.7% 60.4% 61.6% 60.9%
K

65.0% 60.0% 296 / 486
The PI counts only children placed within the LA
boundaries and excludes children placed in
neighbouring authorities close to their home area and
attending Cardiff schools.
16.3% (30) of children not placed in Cardiff are
placed within 10 miles of their home address.
2 of the children not placed in Cardiff are placed with
a relative carer.
Planning always takes account of placement location
for children.  Some children need a specialist
placement that is not available in the city or need to
live away from families, communities or individuals
that could present risks for them.

SCC/001
(a)
Core
Indicator

The percentage of
first placements of
looked after
children during the
year that began
with a care plan in
place

CS CMT

Scrutiny

75.8% 83.4%
(Ave)

82.3%
(Ave)

78.3%
(Ave)

72.3% 64.2%
(Ave)

62.5% 75.0% 67.0% 81.3% 77.8%
L

95.0% 80.0% 49 / 63
Performance against this indicator has reduced
slightly in Quarter 3 and will be kept under close
review by managers.
All Wales average 2014-15 = 92.2%

SCC/001
(b)
Core
Indicator

For those children
looked after
whose second
review (due at 4
months) was due
in the year, the
percentage with a
plan for
permanence at the
due date

CS CMT

Scrutiny

69.2% 80.2%
(Ave)

90.7%
(Ave)

90.4%
(Ave)

87.1% 83.0%
(Ave)

76.4% 81.1% 85.7% 96.6% 74.1%
L

87.0% 80.0% 40 / 54
The reasons for this decrease are currently being
investigated.
All Wales average 2014-15 = 94.7%

P
age 53



Quarter 3

Targets set by CSSIW are highlighted Page 6 of 7 09/03/2016

Indicator
Ref

Indicator Title Reporte
d to:

2007-
08

2008-
09

2009-
10

2010-
11

2011-
12

2012-
13

2013-
14

2014-
15

Q1
2015-
16

Q2
2015-
16

Q3
2015-
16

Curren
t
Progre
ss
Agains
t
Target

Status 2015-
16

Target

Level
Triggeri
ng Mgt
Action

Comments

Reporte
d to:

SCC/021
Core
Indicator

The percentage of
looked after
children reviews
carried out within
statutory
timescales during
the year

CS CMT

Scrutiny

92.3% 95.9%
(Ave)

96.2%
(Ave)

96.4%
(Ave)

95.2% 95.2%
(Ave)

92.4% 88.3% 93.2% 96.0% 95.9%
J

100.0
%

70.0% 397 / 414
All Wales average 2014-15 = 95.5%

SCC/025
Core
Indicator

The percentage of
statutory visits to
looked after
children due in the
year that took
place in
accordance with
regulations

CS CMT

Scrutiny

69.3% 79.5%
(Ave)

88.2%
(Ave)

83.9%
(Ave)

85.1% 89.5%
(Ave)

87.7% 88.9% 85.1% 85.3% 85.3%
K

92.0% 85.0% 353 / 414
All Wales average 2014-15 = 87.7%

Cardiff is the destination of choice for committed social work professionals

Staff 1
Local PI

Percentage of
social work
vacancies in all
teams

CS CMT

Cabinet
Scrutiny

22.1% 26.1% 15.2%
(Ave)

14.7%
(Ave)

15.9%
(Ave)

14.5%
(Ave)

20.8%
(Ave)

27.2%
(Ave)

23.5% 21.4% 21.6%
K

15.0% 25.0% 97.5 / 451.2
I&A = 44.3%
CIN = 16.5%
LAC = 11.2.0%
The vacancy position has remained stable since
Quarter 2, although the position has gradually
deteriorated during Quarter 3.  The recruitment
campaign is ongoing and agreement has been
reached that when all vacancies have been filled,
Children’s Services will continue to recruit to a “pool”
of additional social workers.  This will enable the
service to maintain consistency of service provision
and caseloads whilst managing healthy staff turnover
without needing to rely on expensive agency social
workers.  The ambitious 15% target has been revised
to 18% for 31st March 2017.  Work on the Children’s
Services Workforce Strategy is ongoing and is on
target to be signed off and an implementation plan
agreed in Quarter 4.

Children’s Services are provided on the basis of the most efficient and effective use of resources

P
age 54



Quarter 3

Targets set by CSSIW are highlighted Page 7 of 7 09/03/2016

Indicator
Ref

Indicator Title Reporte
d to:

2007-
08

2008-
09

2009-
10

2010-
11

2011-
12

2012-
13

2013-
14

2014-
15

Q1
2015-
16

Q2
2015-
16

Q3
2015-
16

Curren
t
Progre
ss
Agains
t
Target

Status 2015-
16

Target

Level
Triggeri
ng Mgt
Action

Comments

Reporte
d to:

CS LAC
44
Local PI

Percentage of
LAC placements
with independent
sector providers

CS CMT

Scrutiny

56.4% 56.6% 58.9% 62.0% 64.2% 68.6% 67.4% 71.8% 70.3% 70.3% 70.0%
L

60.0% 340 / 486
Of the 340 placements with independent sector
providers, 121 started within the last 12 months.
The first meeting of the Enhanced Fostering Scheme
Governance Board was held during the quarter.  A
Multi-Agency Steering Decision-Making Group
became operational and the first young person was
placed within the scheme.
However, from the middle of the quarter concerns
about the capacity of the provider to deliver on its
commitments prompted the Director to intervene.
The provider’s initial reaction was positive and
signalled an intention to address issues.

P
age 55



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Contacts - Quarter 3 2015-16 Summary
Total No of Contacts in Quarter 3 2015-2016 7,976

Breakdown of Contacts by Source Quarter  3 2015-16
Source of Contact Total Total %

Central government agency 197 2.5%

Family, friend or neighbour 475 6.0%

Independent provider agency 37 0.5%

LA Housing Dept. or Housing Association 51 0.6%

Local Authority's own Social Services Dept. 428 5.4%

Other Agency 817 10.2%

Other Departments of own or other LA 251 3.1%

Other individual 27 0.3%

Police 3,395 42.6%

Primary health / Community health 967 12.1%

Probation 346 4.3%

School 899 11.3%

Secondary health 67 0.8%

Self referral 12 0.2%

UK Border Agency 6 0.1%

(blank) 1 0.0%

Grand Total 7,976 100.0%

(blank) =No Information recorded on CareFirst

Breakdown of Contacts By Outcome Quarter  3 2015-16
Contact Outcome Total Total %

Contact to Close 4,961 62.2%

Contact to Referral 954 12.0%

Information Received on Open Case 388 4.9%

PPD1 Received on Open Case 648 8.1%

Provision of Information 958 12.0%

Significant CP Information on Open Case 67 0.8%

Grand Total 7,976 100.0%

Contacts Received Over 2 Years 

Month Month Total Quarter Quarter Total

Oct-13 2,270

Nov-13 2,014

Dec-13 1,789 Q3 - 2013-14 6,073

Jan-14 2,040

Feb-14 2,199

Mar-14 2,087 Q4 - 2013-14 6,326

Apr-14 1,995

May-14 2,074

Jun-14 2,360 Q1 - 2014-15 6,429

Jul-14 2,397

Aug-14 2,080

Sep-14 2,560 Q2 - 2014-15 7,037

Oct-14 2,688

Nov-14 2,487

Dec-14 2,245 Q3 - 2014-15 7,420

Jan-15 2,656

Feb-15 2,329

Mar-15 2,554 Q4 - 2014-15 7,539

Apr-15 2,274

May-15 2,460

Jun-15 2,797 Q1 - 2015-16 7,531

Jul-15 2,566

Aug-15 2,016

Sep-15 2,698 Q2 - 2015-16 7,280

Oct-15 2,614

Nov-15 3,096

Dec-15 2,266 Q3 - 2015-16 7,976

197

475

37
51

428

817

251

27

3,395

967

346

899

67

12

6

1
1

10

100

1,000

10,000

Breakdown Contacts by Source Quarter 3 2015-16

4,961

954

388

648
958

67

1

10

100

1,000

10,000

Contact to Close Contact to Referral Information Received on Open
Case

PPD1 Received on Open Case Provision of Information Significant CP Information on
Open Case

Breakdown of Contacts By Outcome Quarter 3 2015-16

2%
6%

0%

1%

5%

10%

3%

0%

43%

12%

4%

11%

1% 0% 0%

0%

Breakdown of Contacts by Source Quarter 3 2015-16

Central government agency

Family, friend or neighbour

Independent provider agency

LA Housing Dept. or Housing Association

Local Authority's own Social Services Dept.

Other Agency

Other Departments of own or other LA

Other individual

Police

Primary health / Community health

Probation

School

Secondary health

Self referral

UK Border Agency

(blank)

6,073
6,326 6,429

7,037

7,420
7,539 7,531

7,280

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

7,000

8,000

Q3 -
2013-14

Q4 -
2013-14

Q1 -
2014-15

Q2 -
2014-15

Q3 -
2014-15

Q4 -
2014-15

Q1 -
2015-16

Q2 -
2015-16

Contacts Received Over 2 Years 

P
age 57



Referrals - Quarter  3 2015-16 Summary
 No of Referrals Quarter  3 2015-16 952

Breakdown of Referrals by Source Quarter 3 2015-16
Source of Referral Total Total %

Central government agency 6 0.6%

Family, friend or neighbour 31 3.3%

LA Housing Dept. or Housing Association 8 0.8%

Local Authority's own Social Services Dept. 124 13.0%

Other Agency 124 13.0%

Other Departments of own or other LA 34 3.6%

Other individual 2 0.2%

Police 227 23.8%

Primary health / Community health 159 16.7%

Probation 39 4.1%

School 186 19.5%

Secondary health 8 0.8%

Self referral 1 0.1%

UK Border Agency 3 0.3%

Grand Total 952 100.0%

Referrals Started in Next quarter 5

Referrals resulting from Contacts in previous Quarter 3

Total Referrals resulting from Contacts in Current quarter 954

Breakdown of Referrals by Outcome Quarter  3 2015-16
Row Labels Total Total %

Initial Assessment 913 95.9%

No Further Action and Close (Referral) 13 1.4%

Referral to JAFF 17 1.8%

Transfer In Conference 9 0.9%

Grand Total 952 100.0%

Referrals Started in Next quarter 5

Referrals resulting from Contacts in previous Quarter 3

Total Referrals resulting from Contacts in Current quarter 954

Total Referrals Over 2 Years 
Month Month Total Quarter Quarter Total

Oct-13 406

Nov-13 388

Dec-13 348 Q3 - 2013-14 1,142

Jan-14 395

Feb-14 385

Mar-14 371 Q4 - 2013-14 1,151

Apr-14 339

May-14 405

Jun-14 425 Q1 - 2014-15 1,169

Jul-14 368

Aug-14 256

Sep-14 345 Q2 - 2014-15 969

Oct-14 371

Nov-14 360

Dec-14 327 Q3 - 2014-15 1,058

Jan-15 303

Feb-15 335

Mar-15 354 Q4 - 2014-15 992

Apr-15 253

May-15 286

Jun-15 318 Q1 - 2015-16 857

Jul-15 342

Aug-15 340

Sep-15 250 Q2 - 2015-16 932

Oct-15 257

Nov-15 398

Dec-15 297 Q3 - 2015-16 952

6

31

8

124 124

34

2

227
159

39

186

8

1

3

1

10

100

1000

Breakdown of Referrals by Source Quarter 3 2015-16

913

13
17

9

1

10

100

1000

Initial Assessment No Further Action and Close
(Referral)

Referral to JAFF Transfer In Conference

Breakdown of Referrals by Outcome Quarter 3 2015-16 

1%

3%

1%

13%

13%

4%

0%

24%

17%

4%

19%

1%
0% 0%

Breakdown of Referrals by Source Quarter 3 2015-16

Central government agency

Family, friend or neighbour

LA Housing Dept. or Housing Association

Local Authority's own Social Services Dept.

Other Agency

Other Departments of own or other LA

Other individual

Police

Primary health / Community health

Probation

School

Secondary health

Self referral

UK Border Agency

1,142 1,151
1,169

969

1,058

992

857

932

0

200

400

600

800

1,000

1,200

1,400

Q3 -
2013-14

Q4 -
2013-14

Q1 -
2014-15

Q2 -
2014-15

Q3 -
2014-15

Q4 -
2014-15

Q1 -
2015-16

Q2 -
2015-16

Total Referrals received Over 2 Years 

P
age 58



CITY AND COUNTY OF CARDIFF
DINAS A SIR CAERDYDD

CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
 15 March 2016

QUARTER THREE CORPORATE PERFORMANCE REPORT and LONG 
TERM STRATEGY FOR SCHOOL IMPROVEMENT “CARDIFF 2020 – 
AIMING FOR EXCELLENCE”

Purpose of the Report 

1. The Committee receives regular Education Corporate Performance reports as 

part of the Committee’s performance management role. This report provides 

The Director of Education and Lifelong Learning with the opportunity to 

present the Education Directorate Corporate Performance report for Quarter 3 

2015/16, attached at Appendix A.

2. As part of the Children & Young People Scrutiny Committee 2015-16 Work 

Programme, agreed in September 2015, the Committee requested a report on 

the Long Term Strategy for School Improvement. This report provides the 

Committee with a verbal update on the progress being made in developing 

the Education Department’s Long Term Strategy for School Improvement 

(Cardiff 2020 – Aiming for Excellence), which is being developed through the 

Citywide Head Teachers Group.

Corporate Performance Quarter 3 

3. The Council’s Performance Management Framework includes the regular 

reporting of Quarterly Performance by Directorate.  The Quarter 3 Education 

Performance reports, attached at Appendix A, cover:

 Progress against Corporate Plan commitments

 Progress against Directorate Plan Actions

 Progress on challenges previously identified

Page 59

Agenda Item 6



 Service delivery issues

 Key Performance Indicator data

 Corporate risks.

4. The report provides the Committee with information about the context that 

these services are operating in, performance information and the 

management actions that are being taken to address performance issues.  

The report also provides an explanation of the progress being made in 

addressing the challenges identified in each quarter.

Scope of the Scrutiny for the Quarter 3 Corporate Performance Report

5. This performance monitoring report will enable Committee to review, assess 

and challenge the implementation of actions to improve education for Cardiff’s 

pupils. Members may also wish to pass any comments, concerns or 

recommendations to the Cabinet Member and or Director of Education and 

Lifelong Learning. At this meeting Committee can review and question:

(i) the progress being made in achieving the Performance indicator 

targets for 2015/16;

(ii) the resources available to deliver the corporate plan actions and 

core business priorities;

(iii) any identified project risks (red status) and the appropriateness of 

the proposed countermeasure; and

(iv) the quality and analysis of the performance information presented 

to Committee.

Long Term Strategy for School Improvement

Background

6. The Committee, agreed to include the long term strategy as at its meeting in 

May 2015, Members received a briefing and letter from the Assistant Director of 

Estyn following their Estyn Monitoring visit in March. The Assistant Director 

highlighted that there was not a clear enough shared understanding of the Long 

Term Strategy for school improvement. Following the consideration of these 

Page 60



comments the Members agreed to write to the Director of Education and 

Lifelong Learning informing him of the concerns expressed by the Inspector.

7. The Committee scrutinised the Education and Lifelong Learning Delivery Plan 

2015/16, in June 2015, and expressed their concern that the Delivery Plan did 

not clearly detail the development of a long tern strategy for school 

improvement. Members noted the Directors comments that schools were taking 

on more responsibilities for the improvement agenda, however Members 

agreed to include the consideration of the Strategy in its work Programme

8. The Director of Education and Lifelong Learning agreed to provide the 

Committee with a verbal update on the development of the Long Term Strategy 

for School Improvement, which has been produced in co-operation with Head 

Teachers across Cardiff’s Schools. 

Way Forward

9. Councillor Sarah Merry (Cabinet Member for Education and Skills), Nick 

Batchelar, Director of Education and Lifelong Learning, will comment on both 

areas, and will be available to answer any questions Members may have. 

10.This report will also enable Members to provide any comments, concerns or 

recommendations to the Cabinet Member for Education and Director of 

Education and Lifelong Learning.

Legal Implications

11. The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and 

recommend but not to make policy decisions.  As the recommendations in this 

report are to consider and review matters there are no direct legal implications.  

However, legal implications may arise if and when the matters under review are 

implemented with or without any modifications. Any report with 

recommendations for decision that goes to Cabinet will set out any legal 

implications arising from those recommendations.  All decisions taken by or on 

behalf of the Council must (a) be within the legal powers of the Council; (b) 

Page 61



comply with any procedural requirement imposed by law; (c) be within the 

powers of the body or person exercising powers on behalf of the Council; (d) be 

undertaken in accordance with the procedural requirements imposed by the 

Council e.g. Scrutiny Procedure Rules; (e) be fully and properly informed; (f) be 

properly motivated; (g) be taken having regard to the Council's fiduciary duty to 

its taxpayers; and (h) be reasonable and proper in all the circumstances.

Financial Implications

12. The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and 

recommend but not to make policy decisions.  As the recommendations in this 

report are to consider and review matters there are no direct financial 

implications at this stage in relation to any of the work programme.  However, 

financial implications may arise if and when the matters under review are 

implemented with or without any modifications. Any report with 

recommendations for decision that goes to Cabinet will set out any financial 

implications arising from those recommendations.

RECOMMENDATION

That Committee reviews the information attached at Appendix A, together with 

information provided at the meeting and provide any recommendations, comments 

or advice to the Cabinet Member and / or Director of Education and Lifelong 

Learning.

DAVID MARR NICK BATCHELAR

Interim Monitoring Officer Director of Education and
Lifelong Learning

8 March 2016

Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



CITY AND COUNTY OF CARDIFF
DINAS A SIR CAERDYDD

15 March 2016

CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

BUDGET MONITORING  PANEL: MONTH NINE BUDGET MONITORING 
REPORT 2015/16

Purpose of Report

1. To provide Members with an update on the outcome of the third meeting of the 

Budget Monitoring Panel recently established by the Committee.  This meeting 

focused on a review of the month nine budget monitoring Cabinet report.

2. To seek agreement to investigate any areas for more detailed scrutiny and report 

any issues to the relevant Cabinet Member and Director.

Background

3. On 15 September 2015, the Committee agreed their 2015/16 work programme. 

As part of this process, Committee Members considered the Wales Audit Office’s 

September 2014 Corporate Assessment of Cardiff Council report and the 

subsequent advice to scrutiny committees to aim to achieve Committee meetings 

that last no longer than three hours.  Whilst the Committee should maintain robust 

and appropriate levels of scrutiny across its terms of reference, it should seek to 

ensure that agendas are of a manageable size, and that work occurs outside 

Committee meetings.

4. To assist this approach, Committee Members agreed to establish a Budget 

Monitoring Panel to scrutinise budget monitoring reports ahead of Committee 

meetings, bringing reports back to the Committee with issues of concern or 

suggestions for further in-depth scrutiny, for agreement by the whole Committee.

Page 77

Agenda Item 7



Outcome of February 2016 Panel Meeting

5. The Budget Monitoring Panel (consisting of Cllrs Cook, Murphy and Thorne) met 

on 24 February 2016 to discuss and review the Month Nine Budget Monitoring 

Report and projected overspend for both the Education and Lifelong Learning 

Directorate and Children’s Services, together with the detailed projection of the 

achievement or otherwise of each of the approved set of budget savings. A report 

summarising this work and the Panel’s recommendations is attached at 

Appendix A. 

Further Scrutiny

6. Members may wish to agree to undertake further Budget Monitoring Panel 

meetings shortly after each Cabinet budget monitoring report is published and to 

report any comments or concerns to the following Committee meeting.

Way Forward

7. Committee Members will have the opportunity to discuss the information provided 

in this report and appendix, and agree a way forward with regard to any issues 

the Panel has recommended for the Committee to consider.

Legal Implications

8. The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and 

recommend but not to make policy decisions. As the recommendations in this 

report are to consider and review matters there are no direct legal implications. 

However, legal implications may arise if and when the matters under review are 

implemented with or without any modifications. Any report with recommendations 

for decision that goes to Cabinet/Council will set out any legal implications arising 

from those recommendations. All decisions taken by or on behalf of the Council 

must (a) be within the legal powers of the Council; (b) comply with any procedural 

requirement imposed by law; (c) be within the powers of the body or person 

exercising powers on behalf of the Council; (d) be undertaken in accordance with 

Page 78



the procedural requirements imposed by the Council e.g. Scrutiny Procedure 

Rules; (e) be fully and properly informed; (f) be properly motivated; (g) be taken 

having regard to the Council's fiduciary duty to its taxpayers; and (h) be 

reasonable and proper in all the circumstances.

Financial Implications

9. The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and 

recommend but not to make policy decisions. As the recommendations in this 

report are to consider and review matters there are no direct financial implications 

at this stage in relation to any of the work programme. However, financial 

implications may arise if and when the matters under review are implemented 

with or without any modifications. Any report with recommendations for decision 

that goes to Cabinet/Council will set out any financial implications arising from 

those recommendations.

RECOMMENDATIONS

The Committee is recommended to discuss the information provided in this report 

and appendix and: 

i. Agree the report and the way forward for the continued scrutiny of Directorate 

savings and overspends; and

ii. To identify any areas for further investigations.

DAVID MARR
Interim Monitoring Officer
8 March 2016

Page 79



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A

CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
BUDGET MONITORING PANEL NOTES – 24 February 2016

Panel Members in Attendance – Councillors, Cook, Murphy and Thorne

The Panel held its third meeting on 24 February to review and evaluate the recently 
published month 9 budget monitoring Cabinet report and associated documents. The 
meeting was held in advance of the March Committee meeting to enable Members 
to identify any issues which they wish to scrutinise in detail and develop any lines of 
inquiry they may wish to report to Committee at its meeting on 15 March.

The Members were provided with copies of the Education and Lifelong Learning and 
Children’s Services financial information from the Month 9 Budget Monitoring 
Cabinet report, which included an update on 2015/16 budget savings, and an update 
on the outstanding 2014/15 savings proposals dated 18 February. Members were 
also provided with copy of the Finance response to the calculation of the budget 
realignment for Children’s Services budget for 2016/17.

The papers enabled the Members to analyse the key areas of spending in Children’s 
Services and Education, as well as their progress in achieving the savings agreed by 
Council in February. Members also discussed the comments added to the budget 
savings table explaining the Directorates’ progress being made in achieving the 
agreed savings.

The Director of Social Services was invited to comment on a number of issues 
highlighted in the Month 9 savings matrix, and expand on some of the comments 
that Finance had put into the budget matrix. The Head of Performance, Resources 
and Services for Education was also invited to expand on a number of  issues 
highlighted in the Month 6 savings matrix, and expand on some of the comments 
that Finance had put into the budget matrix. 

Children’s Services

The Director explained that Children’s Services is a high risk area and any budget 
restrictions must not impact on the safeguarding of children. As such the Budget 
monitoring of the Directorate’s savings has to take into account any funding 
implications arising for the safeguarding of any child, some of which can be very 
resource intensive.

In response to the questions raised, the Director explained the follow:

Work was being undertaken to identify alternative accommodation to the Youth 
Offending Service (Penhill) and Looked After Children Service (Suffolk House). Both 

Page 81



Appendix A

locations were becoming unfit for the operation of the services and alternative 
accommodation was being sourced. The Members stated that savings could be 
made by transferring these services to new premises, and provide an improved 
service for young people and staff. Members requested that plans should be 
developed as soon as possible to enable the services to move to more appropriate 
accommodation in the near future.

Members also expressed some anxiety around the continued increase in cost of 
accommodating looked after children, at month 9 there had been a projected 
overspend of £2,188,000 and this was after a re-alignment of the budget to the value 
of £2,400,000. The Director of Social Services explained a number of activities which 
were being undertaken to help manage the cost of accommodating Looked After 
Children, including the South East Wales Improvement Collaborative and the All 
Wales Purchasing framework.  There was also a joint project officer to work with 
Cardiff and the Vale to look at out of county placements. The Director also explained 
that all cases were placed by the Court and many of the cases were very complex. 
Members also noted that the Early Intervention Scheme would in the long run help 
reduce the number of Looked After Children.

The Members requested a list of all Out of County Placements (by area) and 
suggested that the Committee should undertake a short investigation in to the cost of 
placements, by looking at  “a pen picture” of the cost of say 10 Looked After Children 
cases. 

Education

Neil Hardee attended the meeting on behalf of the Director of Education to explain 
the Directorate’s Financial Position as at Month 9 and to answer any of the 
Members’ questions.

Members were informed that the Month 9 budgetary monitoring projection was still 
for a balanced budget at the end of the year, although it might improve further.  
Members also heard that the Catering budget was expected to make a small surplus, 
which the Directorate was hoping could be transferred to the Catering reserve. This 
reserve was set up to fund the biometric school meal system for all Primary Schools. 
It was anticipated that if this year’s catering surplus could be added to the reserve, 
sufficient funds would then be available to implement the new system in all Primary 
schools next year. Members considered this to be an excellent plan and 
recommended that the reserve should be topped up and the Biometric system be 
implemented during 2016/17.

Following consideration of all the information, the Panel agreed to recommend that 
the Committee 

Page 82



Appendix A

 Informs the Education and Resources Directorate that any surplus made by 
the School Catering Service must be transferred to the School Catering 
Reserve, and that reserve be utilised during this financial year to introduce 
Biometric School Meal system to all Primary Schools.

And enable the Panel to:

 Hold further budget monitoring meetings following the publication of Month 
12 Budget Monitoring Reports; 

 To receive a progress briefing on the accommodation of the Youth offending 
Service and Looked After Children Service at the next Budget Panel 
meeting;

 Undertake a short investigation into the cost of accommodating Looked After 
Children; and

 Receive a progress report on the implementation of Biometric school meals 
system at the next Budget Panel Meeting.

Martyn Hutchings
Principal Scrutiny Officer
29 February 2016

Page 83



This page is intentionally left blank



CITY AND COUNTY OF CARDIFF
DINAS A SIR CAERDYDD

CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
    

 15 March 2016

CORRESPONDENCE UPDATE – INFORMATION REPORT

Background

1. Following most Committee meetings, the Chair writes a letter to the relevant 

Cabinet Member or Officer, summing up the Committee’s comments and 

recommendations regarding the issues considered during that meeting.

Issues

2. Committee letters and responses - The key points raised in the 

Committee’s letter are taken from the Way Forward discussion at the end of 

each meeting and attached as part of the formal minutes of the meetings. 

Responses are evidenced in future reports or copied to Members if 

requested.  A summary of the letters sent and responses received is attached 

at Appendix A and a copy of the letter sent and received since the last 

meeting are attached at Appendix B.

Legal Implications

3. The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and 

recommend but not to make policy decisions. As the recommendations in this 

report are to consider and review matters there are no direct legal 

implications. However, legal implications may arise if and when the matters 

under review are implemented with or without any modifications. Any report 

with recommendations for decision that goes to Cabinet/Council will set out 

any legal implications arising from those recommendations. 

1Page 85

Agenda Item 8



Financial Implications

4. The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and 

recommend but not to make policy decisions. As the recommendations in this 

report are to consider and review matters there are no direct financial 

implications at this stage in relation to any of the work programme. However, 

financial implications may arise if and when the matters under review are 

implemented with or without any modifications. Any report with 

recommendations for decision that goes to Cabinet/Council will set out any 

financial implications arising from those recommendations.

RECOMMENDATIONS

The Committee is recommended to 

o Review the responses receive to the recent letters sent by the Committee 

and refer any questions or concerns to the relevant Cabinet Member or 

Director.

DAVID MARR
Interim Monitoring Officer
8 March 2016

2Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



Page 126



Page 127



Page 128



Page 129



Page 130



Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



Page 134



Page 135



Page 136



Page 137



Page 138



Page 139



Page 140



Page 141



Page 142



Page 143



Page 144



Page 145



Page 146



Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



Page 150



Page 151



Page 152



Page 153



Page 154



Page 155



Page 156



Page 157



Page 158



Page 159



Page 160



Page 161



Page 162



Page 163



Page 164



Page 165



Page 166



Page 167



Page 168



Page 169



Page 170



Appendix B
Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee

Correspondence Report summary 2015 - 16
Committee 

date
Recipient Subject Response Required Response 

date
Response received Future Action

15 
September 
2015

Cllr Lent Child Health and 
Disability 
progress report

Families First 
Review

Recommended that you 
consult and implement 
the new Child Health 
and Disability  eligibility 
criteria as soon as 
possible;

Recommends that  
regular consultation 
meetings are undertaken 
with children and their 
carers who  use the 
Child Health and 
Disability service;

That you and officers 
lobby the Welsh 
Government to ensure 
that the Families First  
funding and packages 
continue to be provided 
post 2017;

That future corporate 
performance quarterly 
reports include the 

25 
November 
2015

The continued work on 
the development plan 
incorporates the 
recommendations

Conversations with the 
Welsh Government are 
on going

These will be 
incorporated in future 
reports

To continue to 
monitor 

P
age 171



Appendix B

Quarter one 
Performance

relevant performance 
indicators published by 
the Wales Data Unit and 
publicised by the Welsh 
Government; and 

Provide details of the 
use of the contingency 
budget for Children’s 
Services.

Reflects the potential for 
additional costs in 
supporting Looked after 
children in external 
residential and fostering 
placements

13 October Cllr Hinchey Budget 
Monitoring

More robust assessment 
of achievability needs to 
be undertaken to ensure 
decisions are made on 
the correct information

Corporate contingency 
should only be allocated 
and approve at the end 
of the Year, should it be 
needed 

5 
November 
2015

Due diligence is 
currently being 
undertaken to proposals 
for the 2016/17 budget 
and will be progressed 
as rigorously as 
possible. However some 
degree of risk will be 
inevitable

At month 4 the projected 
overspend was for an 
overspend therefore the 
contingency was drawn 
down

Panel to 
continue 
monitoring the 
budgets

13 October Cllr Lent Budget 
Monitoring

Payment by Results - 
Information on the 
barriers to achieving this 
saving and further 
details on the ongoing 
review of all out of 
county placements to 

2 
December 
2015

Full response provided 
and copied to the Budget 
panel.

Panel to 
continue to 
monitor the 
budget savings

P
age 172



Appendix B
help identify other 
savings
Business support review 
– As this saving will now 
not be achieved, details 
of alternative actions to 
achieve the saving
Commissioned 
residential services – An 
explanation of why this 
saving could not be 
achieved and the 
alternative actions being 
undertaken to fully 
achieve this saving

13 October Cllr Merry Budget 
Monitoring

Deteriorating position in 
respect of school 
balance – detail of 
actions being taken to 
address the deficits

Funding for the Central 
South Consortium – 
contribution to savings

Staff realignment and 
restructure – detail of 
how the savings will now 
be achieved

5 
November 
2015

Officers are working 
closely with every school 
within the agreed 
protocol. Officers have 
intervened in four 
schools and withdrawn 
delegation from the 
Governing bodies.
Discussions are being 
help with the Consortium 
to contribute to the 
savings  
Savings will be achieved 
through restructure 
before the end of the 
year.

Panel to 
continue to 
monitor the 
budget savings

P
age 173



Appendix B
Committee 

date
Recipient Subject Response Required Response 

date
Response received Future Action

13 October 
2015

National 
Adoption 
Service

Operational 
update

Continued scrutiny of the 
National and regional 
annual report

Performance of the 
V.V.C region

The production of a 
Regional Annual report

13 
November 
2015

National Service - Will 
present future annual 
reports to the Committee

Regional Services – No 
region is yet performing 
consistently improving 
performance is a high 
priority for the region

Following an annual 
review of the 
Collaborative an Annual 
Report will be presented 
to the Committee

Continue to 
review the 
service’s annual 
report

10 
November 

Hannah 
Woodhouse- 
Consortium 
Managing 
Director

Central South 
Consortium  - 
Correspondence

Members agreed to hold 
termly meetings with 
scrutiny chairs. But 
considered it unwise to 
reduce its level of 
scrutiny until the Council 
is removed from Estyn 
monitoring.

No response required Meeting to be 
held in January

10 
November 

Cllr Merry School 
Performance 
Monitoring – 
School 
Inspection and 
literacy and 
Numeracy report

Provision of additional 
information for Members

No response required To continue to 
monitor

P
age 174



Appendix B
Committee 

date
Recipient Subject Response Required Response 

date
Response received Future Action

8  
December

Cllr Lent Children’s 
service quarter 
two performance

Concern about the low 
performance in 
completing Personal 
Education Plans.
Delay in the 
development of the Child 
Sexual exploitation 
strategy.

Action plan to be 
available in April 2016

To continue to 
monitor

8 
December

Estyn Inspection letter Letter acknowledging 
the Inspections 
presentation of the letter 
to Committee 

No response requested

17 
December

Cllr Lent & 
Cllr Elsmore

Joint Committee 
- CSSIW

Letter highlighting issues 
identified through the 
CSSIW 

15 
February

Details of the recruitment 
of Personal Advisors

Actions to be included in 
the Departmental 
business plans
Provision of additional 
information

To continue to 
Monitor

17 
December 

CSSIW 
inspector

Joint Committee Letter highlighting a 
number of concerns on 
the CSSIW letter

14 
January 
2016

CSSIW response – 
providing detail 
information on a number 
of issues that were 
raised in the letter

Continue to 
monitor

P
age 175



Appendix B
Committee 

date
Recipient Subject Response Required Response 

date
Response received Future Action

12 January Carl Davies 
– Home 
Office 
Prevent 
Coordinator

Prevent Strategy Revision to the strategy, 
additional information 
and Training for 
Members 

12 
February
2016

Information provided, 
draft strategy revisited to 
reflect committee’s 
comment and 
discussions in place to 
arrange member 
Training.

Monitor if 
required

12 January 
2016

Cllr Merry Cardiff’s Schools 
Annual Report

Information to be 
included in report to 
cabinet
Copy of individual school 
performance to be made 
available
An immersion initiative 
be developed for pupils 
unable to speak English
.

15 
February 
2016

Information will be 
provided to Cabinet

School Performance to 
be made available

Feasibility is being 
investigated

Will continue to 
monitor.
Awaiting school 
performance 
information

12 January 
2016

Cllr 
Bradbury

New Model for 
Childrens Play

A further briefing on the 
plans

Copies of Business 
plans

That the views of Play 
Centre representative 
should be taken into 
account

22 
February

Will provide further 
briefings on proposals

Will provided copies of 
the Business plans

Continue to be 
conscious of the views of 
the Community.

Awaiting 
business plans

Further report to 
be presented to 
Committee

P
age 176



Appendix B
Committee 

date
Recipient Subject Response Required Response 

date
Response received Future Action

12 January 
2016

Hannah 
Woodhouse

Draft self 
assessment and 
business plan 
2016.17

Concern that the 
Business plan lacked 
focus in some actions. 
The plans needs to 
include explicit actions 
with targets, milestones 
and outcome measures

Role of the Challenge 
advisors in reducing 
Neets

1 March 
2016

The plan is being further 
developed to include 
clear measureable 
activities and impact, 
and further more 
detailed actions for each 
area of focus will be 
produced.

The Challenge advisors 
will challenge and 
support school to reduce 
the number of Neets

Continue to 
monitor

12 January 
2016

Cllr Lent Social Services 
and Well Being 
Act (Wales) 2014 

Concern that the 
Governance did not 
reference scrutiny

Addition resources will 
be required to implement 
the Act

Awaiting a response Regular 
progress reports 
being presented 
to Committee

16 
February 
2016

Cllr Hinchey Draft Corporate 
Plan and Budget 
proposals

Express caution on the 
weight being given to the 
consultation responses. 
Suggests wider 
consultation with 
community groups

Red, Red/Amber 
savings Action Plans will 
be reviewed by next 

24 
February 
2016

A review of the 
consultation is being 
undertaken which will 
inform the 2017/18 
consultation

There are robust plans 
with milestones, and 
these will be available 

Budget 
Monitoring 
panel to 
continue to 
review the 
budget savings 
and action plans

P
age 177



Appendix B
years budget monitoring 
panel.

Concerns about three 
specific savings 
proposals

That the play service 
must continue in situ 
until alternatives are 
found.

for the panel meetings.

Once the partnership 
plans are in place copies 
will be available for the 
Committee

This comment has been 
noted

16 
February 
2016

Cllr Lent Draft Child 
Sexual 
Exploitation 
Prevention 
Strategy

The Committee provided 
feedback on the draft 
strategy, highlighting a 
number of additions, 
updates and 
amendments to the 
strategy together with 
the inclusion of 
additional data and 
information

1 March 
2016

Response clarifies the 
approach being 
undertaken by the LSCB 
to make sure they have 
a coherent starting point 
to strengthen prevention 
and intervention

Referred back 
to Task Group

P
age 178



Appendix B

Inquiry Letters

Outcome 
Letter date

Recipient Subject of 
Investigation

Key Findings and 
Recommendations

Response 
date

Response received Future Action

16 July Cllr Magill School Governors Effectiveness of the 
Governing Body

Support for 
Governing Bodies
.

Training of 
Governors

Awaiting response

11 
November

Cllr Merry Schools causing 
concern

Task group report 12 
January 
2016

Responded to points raise 
in the Committee’s letter

Committee has 
continued to visit 
schools causing 
concern

P
age 179



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Minutes

	4 Social Services and Well Being Act 2014 - Briefing Paper
	Item 4 App A - SSWB
	IAA v0 3 20 01 16.vsd
	Page-1



	5 Children's Services Quarter 3 Performance Report
	children's services quarter 3 corporate performance
	Item 5 App B Q3 Report to Scrutiny
	Item 5 App C Q3 Report to Scrutiny
	Item 5 App C Q3 Report to Scrutiny A
	Item 5 App C Q3 Report to ScrutinyB


	6 Education Quarter 3 Performance & Cardiff 2020 - "Aiming for Excellence"
	Item 6 App A - Quarter 3 Corporate Performance

	7 Budget Panel
	Item 7 App A Budget Monitoring Panel

	8 Correspondence Report
	Item 8 App A Correspondence Report Letters
	Item 8 App B - Correspondence Report


